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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of Investigation No. 337-TA-678

CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS

NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF A CORRECTED GENERAL EXCLUSION ORDER
AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. Iiternational Trade Commission has.
determined to revise the general exclusion order issued in the subject investigation on September
8, 2010.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: lia Chen, Esq., Office of the General
Couunser, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone 202-708-3747. Copies of all nonconfidential documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to
5:15 v in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street,

5. W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-2G5-2000. Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be obtained by contaciing the Commission’s TDD terminal on
202-205-1810. General information concerning the Commission may also be.obtained by
accessing its Internet server (Zzp./wyww. usife.zo:). The public record for this investigation may
be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at Asin.Vedis usitc.goy.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This trademark and copyright-based investigation was
instituted by the Commission on June 17, 2009, based on a complaint filed by Red Bull GmbH of
Fuschl am See, Austria, and Red Bull North America, Inc. of Santa Monica, California
(collectively, “Red Bull”). 74 Fed. Reg. 28725 (Jun. 17, 2009). The respondents narhed in the
notice of investigation were: Chicago Import Inc. of Chicago, Illinois; Lamont Distr.,:Inc., a/k/a
Lamont Distributors Inc., of Brooklyn, New York; India Imports, Inc., a/k/a International
Whotesale Club, of Metairie, Louisiana; Washington Food and Supply of D.C., Inc., a’k/a
Washington Cash & Carry, of Washington, D.C.; Vending Plus, Inc. d/b/a Baltimore Beverage
Co., of Glen Burnie, Maryland; Posh Nosh Imports (L'SA), Inc. of South Kearny; New Jersey
(*‘Posh Nosh”); Greenwich, Inc. of Florham Park, New Jersey; Advantage Food Distributors Ltd.
of Suffolk, UK; Wheeler Trading, Inc. of Miramar, Florida; Avalon International General
Trading, LLC of Dubai, United Arab Emirates; and Central Supply, Inc. of Brooklyn, New York.
The asserted trademarks are U.S. Trademark Reg. Nos. 3,092,197; 2,946,045; 2,994,429; and
3,479,607. The asserted copyright is U.S. Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959.



On September 8, 2010, the Commission issued a general exclusion order directed to U.S.
Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197; 2,946,045; 2,994,429; and 3,479,607 and U.S.
Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959. The Commission has determined to issue a
corrected general exclusion order to more closely conform to the Commission’s determination.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in sections 210.49-50 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.49-50.

By order of the Commission.

. Secretary to the Commission

Issued: October 1, 2010



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20436

In the matter of
Inv. No. 337-TA-678
CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS

CORRECTED GENERAL EXCLUSION ORDER

The Commission has determined that there is a violation of section 337 of the Tanff Act
0f 1930 (19 U.S.C. § 1337) based on the unlawful importation and sale of certain energy drink
products that infringe (1) U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197; 2,946,045; 2,994,429:; or
3,479,607 or (2) U.S. Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959.

Having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the written submissions of the
parties, the Commission has made its determinaticn on the issues of remedy, the public interest,
and bonding. The Commission has determined that a general exclusion from-entry for
consumption is necessary because there is a pattern of violation of section 337 and it is difficult
to identify the sourcé of infringing products. Accordingly, the Commission has determined to
issue a general exclusion order prohibiting the unlicensed importation of infringing energy drink
products.

The Commission has further determined that the public interest factors enumerated in 19
U.S.C. § 1337(d) do not preclude issuance of the general exclusion order, and that the bond
during the Presidential review period shall be in the amount of 100 percent of the entered value

of the articles in question.



Accordingly, the Commission hereby ORDERS that:

1. Energy drink products that (i) infringe U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197
2,946,045; 2,994,429; or 3,479,607 or any marks confusingly similar thereto or that are
otherwise misleading as to source, origin, or sponsorship, or (i1) bear U.S. Copyright Registration
No. VA0001410959 or a design substantially similar thereto are excluded from entry into the
United States for consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign trade zone, or withdrawal
from warehouse for consumption, except if imported by, or licensed from, or with the permission
of the trademark and copyright owner or as provided by law, until such date as the trademarks
and copyright are abandoned, cancelled, or rendered invalid or unenforceable.

2. For the purpose of assisting U.S. Customs and Border Protection in the enforcement of
this Grder, and without in any way limiting the scope of the Order, the Commission has attached
to this Order a copy of the relevant trademark registrations as Exhibit 1 and-a copy of the
reievant copyright as Exhibit 2..

3. Notwithstanding paragraph 1 of this Order, the aforesaid energy drink products are
entitled to entry into the United States for consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign
trade zone, or withdrawal from a warehouse for consumption, under bond in the amount of 100
percent of the entered value of the products pursuant to subsection (j) of section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337(})), and the Presidential memorandum for the United
States Trade Representative of July 21, 2005 (70 Fed. Reg. 43251 (Jul. 21,-2005)) from the day
after this Order is received by the United States Trade Representative until such time as the
United States Trade Representative notifies the Commission that this Order is approved or
disapproved but, in any event, not later than 60 days after the date of receipt of this Order. Note,

however, this provision does not exempt infringing articles from seizures under the trademark



laws enforced by Customs and Border Protection, most notably 19 U.S.C. § 1526(e) and 19
U.S.C. § 1595a(c)(2)(C) in connection with 15 U.S.C. § 1124.

4. In accordance with 19 U.S.C. § 1337(]), the provisions of this Order shall not apply to
energy drink products that are imported by and for the use of the United States, or imported for,
and to be used for, the United States with the authorization or consent of the Government.

5. Complainants Red Bull GmbH and Red Bull North America, Inc. shall file a written
statement with the Commission, made under oath, each year on the anniversary of the issuance
of this Order stating whether Red Bull GmbH and Red Bull North America, Inc. continues to use
each of the aforesaid trademarks and copyright in commerce in the United States in connection
with energy drink products, whether any of the aforesaid trademarks or copyright has been
abandoned, canceled, or rendered invalid or unenforceable, and whether Complainants continue
to satisfy the economic requirements of Section 337(a)(2).

6. The Commission may modify this Order in accordance with the procedures described
in section 210.76 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. § 210.76).

7. The Secretary shall serve copies of this Order upon each party of record in this
investigation and upon the Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Justice, the Federal Trade Commission, and the U.S. Customs and Border Protection.

8. At the discretion of U.S. Customs and Border Protection and pursuant to procedures it
establishes, persons seeking to import energy drink products that are potentially subject to this
Order may be required to certify that they are familiar with the terms of this Order, that they
have made appropriate inquiry, and thereupon state that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the products being imported are not excluded from entry under this Order. At its

discretion, U.S. Customs and Border Protection may require persons who have provided the



certification described in this paragraph to furnish such records or analyses as are necessary to
substantiate the certification.
9. Notice of this Order shall be published in the Federal Register.

By Order of the Commission.

Marilyn RNAbboOtt
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: October 1, 2010



CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS 337-TA-678
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF A
CORRECTED GENERAL EXCLUSION ORDER has been served by hand upon the
Commission Investigative Attorney, Juan Cockburn, Esq., and the following parties as

indicated, on October 1, 2010

Marilyn R. Abbott, 8ecretary
U.S. Internati rade Commission
500 E Street, SW

Washington, DC 20436

%

On Behalf of Complainants Red Bull GmbH and Red

Bull North America, Inc.:

Raymond A. Kurz, Esq. ( ) Via Hand Delivery

HOGAN LOVELLS US LLP ( ) Via Overnight Mail
Columbia Square (Via First Class Mail
555 Thirteenth Street, NW ( ) Other:

Washington, DC 20004-1109

GOVERNMENT AGENCIES:

Edward T. Hand, Chief

Foreign Commerce Section
Aantitrust Division

U.S. Department of Justice

450 5™ Street NW — Room 11000
Washington, DC 20530

U.S. Bureau of Customs and Border Protection
Intellectual Property Rights Branch

Mint Annex Building

799 9" Street, NW -7" floor

Washington, DC 20229-1177

( ) Via Hand Delivery
( ) Via Overnight Mail
(+) Via First Class Mail
( ) Other:

( ) Via Hand Delivery
( ) Via Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
( ) Other:



Page 2 — Certificate of Service

Elizabeth Kraus, Deputy Director
International Antitrust, Office of
International Affairs

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, Room 498
Washington, DC 20580

Richard Lambert, Esq.

Office of Technology Development Services
Dept. of Health & Human Services

National Institutes of Health

6610 Rockledge Drive - Room 2800, MSC 6606
Bethesda, MD 20892

( ) Via Hand Delivery
( ) Via Overnight Mail
(Via First Class Mail
( ) Other:

( ) Via Hand Delivery

( ) Via Overnight Mail
(/ﬁ/ 1a First Class Mail
() Other:



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of Investigation No. 337-TA-678

CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS

NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF A GENERAL EXCLUSION;
TERMINATION OF THE INVESTIGATION

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has issued a
general exclusion order in the above-captioned investigation and has terminated the
investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Jia Chen, Esq., Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone 202-708-3747. Copies of all nonconfidential documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to
5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street,
S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on
202-205-1810. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its Internet server (http.//www.usitc.gov). The public record for this investigation may
be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at Attp.//edis. usitc. gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This trademark and copyright-based investigation was
instituted by the Commission on June 17, 2009, based on a complaint filed by Red Bull GmbH of
Fuschl am See, Austria, and Red Bull North America, Inc. of Santa Monica, California
(collectively, “Red Bull™). 74 Fed. Reg. 28725 (Jun. 17, 2009). The respondents named in the
notice of investigation were: Chicago Import Inc. of Chicago, Illinois (“Chicago Import™);
Lamont Distr., Inc., a/k/a Lamont Distributors Inc., of Brooklyn, New York (“Lamont”); India
Imports, Inc., a/k/a International Wholesale Club, of Metairie, Louisiana (“India Imports™);
Washington Food and Supply of D.C., Inc., a/k/a Washington Cash & Carry, of Washington,
D.C. (*Washington Food”); Vending Plus, Inc. d/b/a Baltimore Beverage Co., of Glen Burnie,
Maryland (“Vending Plus™); Posh Nosh Imports (USA), Inc. of South Kearny, New Jersey
(“Posh Nosh™); Greenwich, Inc. of Florham Park, New Jersey (“Greenwich”); Advantage Food
Distributors Ltd. of Suffolk, UK (“Advantage Food”); Wheeler Trading, Inc. of Miramar, Florida

1



(“Wheeler Trading™); Avalon International General Trading, LLC of Dubai, United Arab
Emirates (“Avalon™); and Central Supply, Inc. of Brooklyn, New York (“Central Supply”). The
complaint further alleged that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection
(a)(2) of section 337. The asserted trademarks are U.S. Trademark Reg. Nos. 3,092,197,
2,946,045; 2,994,429; and 3,479,607. The asserted copyright is U.S. Copyright Registration No.
VA0001410959.

On January 5, 2010, the Commission determined not to review two initial determinations
(“IDs”) (Order Nos. 21 and 22) finding Lamont and Avalon in default pursuant to Commission
Rule 210.16. On January 28, 2010, the Commission determined not to review two additional IDs
(Order Nos. 29 and 30) finding respondents Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, and
Chicago Imports in default pursuant to Commission Rule 210.16. On February 16, 2010, the
Commission determined not to review an ID (Order No. 32) finding respondent Central Supply
in default pursuant to Commission Rule 210.16.

Wheeler Trading, Washington Food, India Imports, and Vending Plus were the only
respondents that responded to the complaint and notice of investigation. On January 20, 2010,
the Commission determined not to review four IDs (Order Nos. 24, 25, 26, and 27) terminating
the investigation as to those respondents on the basis of settlement agreements. Thus, defaulting
respondents Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Chicago Imports, Avalon, Central Supply,
and Lamont were the only respondents remaining in the investigation.

On December 2, 2009, Red Bull moved for summary determination on the issues of
domestic industry, importation, and violation of Section 337. Pursuant to Commission Rule
210.16(c)(2), 19 C.F.R. § 216(c)(2), Red Bull also stated that it was seeking a general exclusion
order. On March 31, 2010, the presiding ALJ issued the subject ID, Order No. 34, granting Red
Bull’s motion for summary determination of violation with respect to respondents Avalon, Posh
Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Central Supply, and Chicago Import, but not with respect to
Lamont. He also issued his recommendations on remedy and bonding in Order No. 34.
Specifically, the ALJ recommended issuance of a general exclusion order and a bond of 100
percent. No petitions for review were filed.

On May 14, 2010, the Commission issued notice of its determination not to review the ID
granting summary determination of violation in part, and requesting briefing on remedy, the
public interest, and bonding. On May 28, 2010, Red Bull submitted briefing on remedy, the
public interest, and bonding. Specifically, Red Bull requested a general exclusion order. The [A
also submitted briefing on May 28, 2010, in support of a general exclusion order. No other
submissions were received.

Having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the ALJ’s recommended
determination, the Commission has determined that the appropriate relief is a general exclusion
order prohibiting the unlicensed entry of certain energy drink products that (i) infringe U.S.
Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197; 2,946,045, 2,994,429; or 3,479,607 or any marks



confusingly similar thereto or that are otherwise misleading as to source, origin, or sponsorship,
or (ii) bear Red Bull’s U.S. Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959 or a design confusingly
similar thereto or that are otherwise misleading as to source, origin or sponsorship.

The Commission has further determined that the public interest factors listed in section
337(d)(1) do not preclude issuance of the general exclusion order. Finally, the Commission has
determined that the amount of bond to permit temporary importation during the period of
Presidential review shall be in the amount of 100 percent of the value of the infringing products
that are subject to the general exclusion order. The Commission’s order and opinion were
delivered to the President and to the United states Trade Representative on the day they were
issued.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in sections 210.49-50 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.49-50.

By order of the Commission.

Secretary to the Commission

Issued: September 8, 2010 ‘



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the matter of

CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS Inv. No. 337-TA-678

GENERAL EXCLUSION ORDER

The Commission has determined that there is a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act
of 1930 (19 U.S.C. § 1337) based on the unlawful importation and sale of certain energy drink
products that infringe (1) U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197; 2,946,045; 2,994,429; or
3,479,607 or (2) U.S. Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959.

Having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the written submissions of the
parties, the Commission has made its determination on the issues of remedy, the public interest,
and bonding. The Commission has determined that a general exclusion from entry for
consumption is necessary because there is a pattern of violation of section 337 and it is difficult
to identify the source of infringing products. Accordingly, the Commission has determined to
issue a general exclusion order prohibiting the unlicensed importation of infringing energy drink
products.

The Commission has further determined that the public interest factors enumerated in 19
U.S.C. § 1337(d) do not preclude issuance of the general exclusion order, and that the bond
during the Presidential review period shall be in the amount of 100 percent of the entered value
of the articles in question. |

Accordingly, the Commission hereby ORDERS that:



1. Energy drink products that (i) infringe U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197,
2,946,045; 2,994,429; or 3,479,607 or any marks confusingly similar thereto or that are
otherwise misleading as to source, origin, or sponsorship, or (ii) bear U.S. Copyright Registration
No. VA0001410959 or a design confusingly similar thereto or that are otherwise misleading as
to source, origin, or sponsorship are excluded from entry into the United States for consumption,
entry for consumption from a foreign trade zone, or withdrawal from warehouse for
consumption, except if imported by, or licensed from, or with the permission of the trademark
and copyright owner or as provided by law, until such date as the trademarks and copyright are
abandoned, cancelled, or rendered invalid or unenforceable.

2. For the purpose of assisting U.S. Customs and Border Protection in the enforcement of
this Order, and without in any way limiting the scope of the Order, the Commission has attached
to this Order a copy of the relevant trademark registrations as Exhibit 1 and a copy of the
relevant copyright as Exhibit 2.

3. Notwithstanding paragraph 1 of this Order, the aforesaid energy drink products are
entitled to entry into the United States for consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign
trade zone, or withdrawal from a warehouse for consumption, under bond in the amount of 100
percent of the entered value of the products pursuant to subsection (j) of section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337(j)), and the Presidential memorandum for the United
States Trade Representative of July 21, 2005 (70 Fed. Reg. 43251 (Jul. 21, 2005)) from the day
after this Order is received by the United States Trade Representative until such time as the
United States Trade Representative notifies the Commission that this Order is approved or
disapproved but, in any event, not later than 60 days after the date of receipt of this Order. Note,

however, this provision does not exempt infringing articles from seizures under the trademark



laws enforced by Customs and Border Protection, most notably 19 U.S.C. § 1526(e) and 19
U.S.C. § 1595a(c)(2)(C) in connection with 15 U.S.C. § 1124.

4. In accordance with 19 U.S.C. § 1337(1), the provisions of this Order shall not apply to
energy drink products that are imported by and for the use of the United States, or imported for,
and to be used for, the United States with the authorization or consent of the Government.

5. Complainants Red Bull GmbH and Red Bull North America, Inc. shall file a written
statement with the Commission, made under oath, each year on the anniversary of the issuance
of this Order stating whether Red Bull GmbH and Red Bull North America, Inc. continues to use
each of the aforesaid trademarks and copyright in commerce in the United States in connection
with energy drink products, whether any of the aforesaid trademarks or copyright has been
abandoned, canceled, or rendered invalid or unenforceable, and whether Complainants continue
to satisfy the economic requirements of Section 337(a)(2).

6. The Commission may modify this Order in accordance with the procedures described
in section 210.76 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. § 210.76).

7. The Secretary shall serve copies of this Order upon each party of record in this
investigation and upon the Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Justice, the Federal Trade Commission, and the U.S. Customs and Border Protection.

8. At the discretion of U.S. Customs and Border Protection and pursuant to procedures it
establishes, persons seeking to import energy drink products that are potentially subject to this
Order may be required to certify that they are familiar with the terms of this Order, that they
have made appropriate inquiry, and thereupon state that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the products being imported are not excluded from entry under this Order. At its

discretion, U.S. Customs and Border Protection may require persons who have provided the



certification described in this paragraph to furnish such records or analyses as are necessary to
substantiate the certification.

9. Notice of this Order shall be published in the Federal Register.

Marilyn R. ‘;_ﬁ
Secretary to the Commission

By Order of the Commission.

Issued: September 8, 2010



CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS 337-TA-678
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached NOTICE OF ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL EXCLUSION: TERMINATION OF THE INVESTIGATION has been
served by hand upon the Commission Investigative Attorney, Juan Cockburn, Esq., and
the following parties as indicated, on __ September 8, 2010

Marilyn R.Gabbott, Secretary
U.S. International Trade Commission

500 E Street, SW
Washington, DC 20436

On Behalf of Complainants Red Bull GmbH and Red
Bull North America, Inc.:

Raymond A. Kurz, Esq. ( ) Via Hand Delivery
HOGAN LOVELLS US LLP (V){%a Overnight Mail
Columbia Square (¥) Via First Class Mail
555 Thirteenth Street, NW () Other:

Washington, DC 20004-1109

GOVERNMENT AGENCIES:

Edward T. Hand, Chief

Foreign Commerce Section
Antitrust Division

U.S. Department of Justice

450 5™ Street NW — Room 11000
Washington, DC 20530

U.S. Bureau of Customs and Border Protection
Intellectual Property Rights Branch
Mint Annex Building

799 9t Street, NW -7" floor
Washington, DC 20229-1177

( ) Vid Hand Delivery

( ) X¥ia Overnight Mail
(V) Via First Class Mail
() Other:

Vija Hand Delivery

ia Overnight Mail
Via First Class Mail
Other:

(
(
(
(
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Elizabeth Kraus, Deputy Director
International Antitrust, Office of
International Affairs

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, Room 498
Washington, DC 20580

Richard Lambert, Esq.

Office of Technology Development Services
Dept. of Health & Human Services

National Institutes of Health

6610 Rockledge Drive - Room 2800, MSC 6606
Bethesda, MD 20892

( ) Via Hand Delivery
(3}/&61 Overnight Mail
() Via First Class Mail
( ) Other:

( ) Via Hand Delivery
(Xda Overnight Mail
(V) Via First Class Mail
( ) Other:






UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

In the matter of
Inv. No. 337-TA-678
CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS

COMMISSION OPINION ON REMEDY, THE PUBLIC INTEREST,
AND BONDING

On March 31, 2010, the presiding administrative law judge (“ALJ”) issued an initial
determination (“ID), Order No. 34, finding a violation of section 337 of the Tariff ['Xct of 1930,
19 U.S.C. § 1337 (“Section 337”) based on substantial, reliable, and probative evidence by
several defaulting respondents in this investigation. In Order No. 34, the ALJ also issued his
recommendations on remedy, the public interest, and bonding (“RD”). Specifically, the ALJ
recommended issuance of a general exclusion order based on his determination that Section
337(d)(2)(B) has been met and a bond of 100 percent. On May 14, 2010, the Commission
determined not to review the ID granting summary determination on violation, and requested
briefing on remedy, the public interest, and bonding. On September 8, 2010, the Commission
issued a notice and a general exclusion order and terminated the investigation. The following
opinion sets forth the reasons for the Commission’s determination with respect to remedy, the
public interest, and bonding.

I. BACKGROUND

The Commission instituted this trademark and copyright-based investigation on June 17,

2009 pursuant to Section 337, based on a complaint filed by Red Bull GmbH of Fuschl am See,

Austria, and Red Bull North America, Inc. of Santa Monica, California (collectively, “Red




Bull”). 74 Fed. Reg. 28725 (Jun. 17, 2009). The respondents named in the amended notice of
investigation were: Chicago Import Inc. of Chicago, Tllinois (‘“‘Chicago Import™); Lamont Distr.,
Inc., a/k/a Lamont Distributors Inc., of Brooklyn, New York (“Lamont”); India Imports, Inc.,
a/k/a International Wholesale Club, of Metairie, Louisiana (“India Imports™); Washington Food
and Supply of D.C,, Inc., a/k/a Washington Cash & Carry, of Washington, D.C. (“Washington
Food™); Vénding Plus, Inc., d/b/a Baltimore Beverage Co., of Burnie, Maryland (“Vending
Plus”); Posh Nosh Imports (USA), Inc. of South Kearny, New Jersey (“Posh Nosh™); Greenwich,
Inc. of Florham Park, New Jersey (“Greenwich”); Advantage Food Distributors Ltd. of Suffolk,
UK (“Advantage Food”); Wheeler Trading, Inc. of Miramar, Florida (“Wheeler Trazi.ing”);
Avalon International General Trading, LLC of Dubai, United Arab Emirates (“Avalon”); and
Central Supply, Inc. of Brooklyn, New York (“Central Supply”). The complaint further alleged
that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of Section 337. The
asserted trademarks are United States Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197, 2,946,045,
2,994,429, and 3,479,607 (“Red Bull Registered Trademarks”). The asserted copyright is U.S.
Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959 (“Red Bull Registered Copyright”).

On January 5, 2010, the Commission determined not to review two IDs (Order Nos. 21
and 22) finding Lamont and Avalon in default pursuant to Commission Rule 210.16. On January
28, 2010, the Commission determined not to review two IDs (Order Nos. 29 and 30) finding
respondents Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, and Chicago Imports in default pursuant
to Commission Rule 210.16. On February 16, 2010, the Commission determined not to review
an ID (Order No. 32) finding respondent Central Supply in default pursuant to Commission Rule
210.16. Wheeler Trading, Washington Food, India Imports, and Vending Plus were the only

respondents that responded to the complaint and notice of investigation. On January 20, 2010,




the Commission determined not to review four IDs (Order Nos. 24, 25, 26, and 27) terminating
the investigation as to those respondents on the basis of settlement agreements. Thus, defaulting
respondents Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Chicago Imports, Avalon, Central Supply,
and Lamont were the only respondents remaining in the investigation,

On December 2, 2009, Red Bull moved for summary determination on the issues of
domestic industry, importation, and violation of Section 337. Pursuant to Commission Rule
210.16(c)(2), 19 C.ER. § 216(c)(2), Red Bull also stated that it was seeking a general exclusion
order. On December 23, 2009, the Commission investigative attorney (“TA”) submitted a
response in support of a finding that a domestic industry exists and that Section 337 has been
violated by defaulting respondents Avalon, Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantagé Food, Central
Supply, and Chicago Import, but not by defaulting respondent Lamont. On January 13, 2010,
and again on March 10, 2010, Red Bull filed without objection supplemental declarations and
attachments to its motion for summary determination.

On March 31, 2010, the ALJ issued the subject ID, Order No. 34, granting Red Bull’s
motion for summary determination of violation with respect to respondents Avalon, Posh Nosh,
Greenwich, Advantage Food, Central Supply, and Chicago Import, but not with respect to
Lamont. He also issued his recommendations on remedy, the public interest, and bonding in
Order No. 34. Specifically, the ALJ recommended issuance of a general exclusion order and a
bond of 100 percent. No petitions of for review of this ID were filed.

On May 14, 2010, the Commission issued notice of its determination not to review the ID
granting summary determination of violation in part, and requested briefing on remedy, the
public interest, and bonding. On May 28, 2010, Red Bull submitted briefing on remedy, the

public interest, and bonding. Specifically, Red Bull requested a general exclusion order. The IA




also submitted briefing on May 28, 2010, in support of a general exclusion order. No other
submissions were received.
II. DISCUSSION

A. Remedy

The Commission is authorized to issue a limited exclusion order excluding the goods of
the person(s) found in violation, or, if certain criteria are met, the Commission may issue a
general exclusion order excluding all infringing goods regardless of the source. The
Commission’s authority to issue a general exclusion order in this investigation is found in
Section 337(d)(2), which provides:

The authority of the Commission to issue an exclusion from entry of articles shall

be limited to persons determined by the Commission to be violating this section

unless the Commission determines that—

(A)  ageneral exclusion from entry of articles is necessary to prevent
circumvention of an exclusion order limited to products of named persons; or

(B) thereisa patterﬁ of violation of this section and it is difficult to identify
the source of infringing products.

19 U.S.C. § 1337(d)(2). As emphasized by the Federal ‘Circuit, a party must meet the
“heightened requirements of Section 337(d)(2)(A) or (d)(2)(B)” before the Commission has
authority to issue a general exclusion order against products of non-respondents. Kyocera
Wireless Corp. v. Int’l Trade Commission, 545 F.3d 1340, 1537 (Fed. Cir. 2008).

The ALJ addressed the statutory requirements under Section 337(d)(2)(B) and found
appropriate grounds for issuing a general exclusion order. ID/RD at 39-46. Specifically, the

ALJ found that sales of certain energy drink products that infringe the Red Bull Registered

Trademarks and the Red Bull Registered Copyright (collectively “Gray Market Red Bull Energy

Drinks”) are widespread. Id. at 41. For example, the ALJ observed that in the time period from




filing the complaint through discovery alone, complainants discovered numerous entities other
than respondents who engaged in the importation and sale after importation of Gray Market Red
Bull Energy Drinks. Id. The ALJ noted that respondents and other third parties have indicated
that they sold Gray Market Red Bully Energy Drinks to hundreds, if not thousands, of customers
who purchased, served, or sold the infringing products. Id. at 42. Tﬁe ALJ also noted that the
infringing products sold in the United States emanate from a wide array of countries, and cans of
several of these Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks feature differences including foreign
language labeling, over-labels or inkjet stamps, and different ingredients. Id. at 42-43. In
addition, the ALJ noted that complainants have filed multiple cases in federal district courts

against certain respondents in this investigation, investigated and sought discovery from

numerous third parties, and sent cease-and-desist letters to and entered into negotiations with

such third parties. Id. at 43.

The ALIJ further found that it is difficuﬁ to identify the source of infringing products
because companies selling Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks are applying over-labels that
identify distributors unrelated to complainants, and also because there are extensive salés on the
internet by sellers whose identities are hidden. ID/RD at 44-45. Moreover, the ALJ pointed out

that Red Bull’s investigations, monitoring of the marketplace, and enforcement efforts have

revealed that gray market activities are widespread, opportunistic, and sporadic. Id. For
example, the ALJ noted that that certain entities may engage in gray market activities for a short
period of time and thus the window for identifying such entities is brief. Id. at 45. The ALJ
additionally noted that there are numerous entities that engage in such activities, many of which

appear to be smaller operations. Id. Based on these findings, the ALJ recommended the entry of



a general exclusion order directed to certain energy drink products that infringe the Red Bull
Registered Trademarks and the Red Bull Registered Copyright. Id. at 47.

We agree with the ALIJ that the factual requirements for the issuance of a general
exclusion order under Section 337(d)(2)(B) have been met. With respect to the “pattern of
violation,” Red Bull has named eleven respondents in this investigation, has initiated multiple
lawsuits in district courts against various of the respondents for infringing their trademarks and
copyright, and has discovered the identities of numerous entities other than respondents who are
engaged in the importation to, sale for importation, or sale after importation of Gray Market Red
Bull Energy Drinks. See Complainants’ Statement of Undisputed Material Facts (“SUMF™)
accompanying Complainants’ Motion for Summary Determination on Violation, 241. As
noted by the ALJ, complainant Red Bull North America and its authorized distributors have
identified 250 suspected parties in 2009 alone who are engaged in gray market activities across
the United States. ID/RD at 42; SUMF { 212, 232-233, 238-240. In addition to the numerous
entities involved in gray market activities, the Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks being sold
in the United States emanate from a wide array of foreign countries spanning different
continents. Stﬂ\dF, § 241. Moreover, once the infringing products are purchased, it is relatively
easy and inexpensive for entities to import them into the United States. SUMF, ] 235, 253-255,
257, 258. Numerous entities are able to trade the products merely by making a posting on an
online business-to-business portal or by operating a website. SUMF, ] 235, 253—254.
Consequently, we agree with the ALJ that Red Bull has met its burden to establish the existence
of a “pattern of violation” under the statute.

Red Bull has also met its burden to establish that “it is difficult to identify the source of

infringing products.” As noted by the ALJ, the gray market Red Bull Energy Drinks are being



sold extensively over the internet, including through business-to-business portals where the
identities of such sellers are hidden. ID/RD at 44; SUMF, q§ 2335, 253-254. In addition, Red
Bull’s investigations, monitoring of the marketplace, and enforcement efforts have revealed that
many entities engage in gray market activity for a short period of time and are smaller
operations, further making it difficult to identify the infringing source. SUMF, {{ 213, 231.
Moreover, Red Bull often first learns of such activities after the infringing products have been
offered for sale in a retail or wholesale location open to the public. SUMF, § 217. At this point
in the distribution channel, retailers and wholesalers are reluctant to identify the source of the
infringing products. Id.

Based on the foregoing, we agree with the ALJ that the statutory requirements for the
issuance of a general exclusion order under Section 337(d)(2)(B) has been met, and we therefore
determine that the appropriate remedy in this investigation is a general exclusion order. Our
general exclusion order prohibits entry into the United States energy drink products that (i)
infringe the Red Bull trademarks in issue or any marks confusingly similar thereto or that are
otherwise misleading as to source, origin, or sponsorship, or (ii) bear the Red Bull copyright at in
issue or a design confusingly similar thereto or that are otherwise misleading as to source, origin
or sponsorship.

B. The Public Interesf

In determining whether to issue a general exclusion under Section 337(d)(2), the
Commission must consider several factors affecting the public interest. Specifically, the
Commission must consider:

[Tihe effect of such exclusion upon the public health and welfare, competitive

conditions in the United States economy, and production of like or directly
competitive articles in the United States, and United States consumers.




19 U.S.C. § 1337(d)(1). The public interest analysis does not concern whether there is a public
interest in issuing a remedial order, but whether issuance of such an order will adversely affect
the public interest. Certain Agricultural Vehicles and Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-
487, Comm’n Op. at 17 (Dec. 2004).

The ALJ found that a general exclusion order is in the public interest, in view of the
notifications received by Red Bull North America from governmental consumer protection
agencies, including complaints regarding the failure of the Red Bull Gray Market Energy Drinks
to comply with federal and state regulations, and in view of the fact that the infringing products
are not subject to Red Bull’s quality control and safety standards. ID/RD at 46.

We agree with the ALJ that the public interest favors a general exclusion order, It is
undisputed that the continued importation, sale for importation into, and the sale after
importation in the Untied States of Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks will harm Red Bull’s
trademarks and copyright in issue. ID/RD at 46; SUMF, { 78-80, 85, 141, 147-164, 238-240,
259, 260. Also, as pointed out by the ALJ, Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks fail to comply
with federal and state regulations regarding labeling and packaging, and Red Bull North
America, Inc. has received complaints and noﬁfioations regarding the infringing products from
various governmental consumer protection agencies and police enforcement. ID/RD at 34, 35;
SUMF, qq 92-93, 142-144, 238-240. In addition, Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks are not
subject to Red Bull’s quality control and safety standards such as Red Bull’s product recall
procedures, and Red Bull has received numerous consumer complaints [

] SUMF, {4 96-140, 147-149, 155-164, 260. Moreover, there is
no evidence that domestic demand for energy drink products cannot be met by Red Bull and its

legitimate competitors, i.e., manufacturers and retailers of energy drink products who do not



infringe the Red Bull Registered Trademarks and the Red Bull Registered Copyright. Thus, the
record does not support a finding that issuance of a general exclusion order is precluded by
consideration of the public interest factors set out in Section 337(d)(1).
C. Bond During Period of Presidential Review

During the period of Presidential review, imported articles otherwise subject to a
remedial order are entitled to conditional entry under bond, pursuant to Section 337(j)(3). The
amount of the bond is specified by the Commission and must be an amount “sufficient to protect
the complainant from any injury.” 19 U.S.C. § 1337()(3); 19 C.F.R. § 210.50.

The ALJ explained that, in setting the amount of the bond to be imposed during the

period of Presidential review, the Commission often considers the differential in sales price

between the patented product made by the domestic industry and the lower price of the
infringing imported product. ID/RD at 47 (citing Certain Microsphere Adhesives, Process for
Making Same, and Products Containing Same, Including Self-Stick Repositionable Notes, Inv. No.
337-TA-366, Comm’n Op. at 24 (Jan. 1996)). In the present investigation, the ALJ noted that each
of the defaulting respondents sets its price for infringing products differently. Id. Thus, the ALJ

concluded that a price comparison would be difficult to accurately calculate and that a bond of

100 percent is appropriate.

When there is insufficient evidence of pricing information that is not due to a failure of
proof by complainants, the Commission’s practice is to impose a bond of 100% of the entered
value of the accused product. Certain Neodymium-Iron-Boron Magnets, Magnet Alloys, and
Products Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-372, Commission Op. on Remedy, the Public
Interest, and Bonding at 15 (May 1996). Because the defaulting respondents have failed to
participate in discovery and because each sets its price differently, it is impossible to calculate a

bond based upon a set price differential. Accordingly, we have set the bond at 100 percent of the

-9.-



entered value of the Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drinks to prevent any harm to Red Bull

during the period of Presidential review.

By Order of the Commission. /

{
Marilyn"R. Abbott
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: September 8, 2010
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of Investigation No. 337-TA-678

CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS

NOTICE OF COMMISSION DECISION NOT TO REVIEW
AN INITIAL DETERMINATION OF VIOLATION OF SECTION 337; SCHEDULE FOR
SUBMISSIONS ON REMEDY, PUBLIC INTEREST, AND BONDING

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has
determined not to review a final initial determination (“final ID”) (Order No. 34) issued by the
presiding administrative law judge (“ALJ”) finding a violation of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of
1930, as amended (“section 3377) in the above-identified investigation .

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: James A. Worth, Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone 202-205-3065. Copies of the public version of the ID and all nonconfidential
documents filed in connection with this investigation are or will be available for inspection
during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-
205-2000. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained
by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205-1810. General information
concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its Internet server
(http.//www.usitc.gov). The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the
Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at Attp.//edis. usitc. gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 17, 2009, the Commission instituted this
investigation, based on a complaint filed by Red Bull GmbH of Fuschl am See, Austria, and Red
Bull North America of Santa Monica, California (collectively, “Red Bull”) filed on May 15,
2009, and supplemented on June 1, 2009. The respondents named in the notice of investigation
were: Chicago Import Inc., of Chicago, Illinois (“Chicago Import™); Lamont Distr., Inc., a/k/a
Lamont Distributors Inc., of Brooklyn, New York (“Lamont”); India Imports, Inc., a’k/a
International Wholesale Club of Metairie, Louisiana (“India Imports”); Washington Food and
Supply of D.C., Inc., a’k/a Washington Cash & Carry of Washington, D.C (“Washington Food”);
Vending Plus, Inc., of Glen Burnie, Maryland; and Baltimore Beverage Co., Glen Burnie,
Maryland. The complaint alleged violations of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, by reason of the importation, the sale for importation, or the sale after importation, of



certain energy drink products that infringe U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 3,092,197;
2,946,045; 2,2994,429; 3,479,607 and U.S. Copyright Registration No. VA0001410959. The
complaint further alleged that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection
(a)(2) of section 337. On August 12, 2009, the Commission determined not to review an [D
(Order No. 7) granting a motion to amend the notice of investigation to clarify that Vending Plus,
Inc., and Baltimore Beverage Co., comprise a single entity, Vending Plus, Inc. d/b/a Baltimore
Beverage Co (“Vending Plus”). On September 30, 2009, the Commission determined not to
review an ID (Order No. 11) granting a motion to amend the notice of investigation to include the
following additional respondents: Posh Nosh Imports (USA), Inc., of South Kearny, New Jersey
(“Posh Nosh™); Greenwich, Inc., of Florham Park, New Jersey (“Greenwich”); Advantage Food
Distributors Ltd., of Suffolk, UK (“Advantage Food’(’), Wheeler Trading, Inc., of Miramar,
Florida (“Wheeler Trading™); Avalon International General Trading, LLC, of Dubai, United Arab
Emirates (“Avalon”); and Central Supply, Inc., of Brooklyn, NY (“Central Supply™).

On January 5, 2010, the Commission determined not to review IDs (Order Nos. 21 and
22) finding Lamont and Avalon in default pursuant to Commission Rule 210.16. On January 20,
2010, the Commission determined not to review four IDs (Order Nos. 24, 25, 26, and 27)
terminating the investigation as to respondents Wheeler Trading, Washington Food, India
Imports, and Vending Plus on the basis of settlement agreements. On January 28, 2010, the
Commission determined not to review IDs (Order Nos. 29 and 30) finding respondents Posh
Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, and Chicago Imports in default pursuant to Commission
Rule 210.16. On February 16, 2010, the Commission determined not to review an ID (Order No.
32) finding respondent Central Supply in default pursuant to Commission Rule 210.16.

On December 2, 2009, Red Bull moved for summary determination on the issues of
domestic industry, importation, and violation of Section 337. Pursuant to Commission Rule
210.16(c)(2), 19 C.F.R. § 216(c)(2), Red Bull also stated that it was seeking a general exclusion
order. On December 23, 2009, the Commission investigative attorney submitted a response, in
support of a finding that domestic industry exists and that Section 337 has been violated by
defaulting respondents Avalon, Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Central Supply, and
Chicago Import, but not by respondent Lamont. On January 13, 2010, again on March 10, 2010,
Red Bull filed without objection supplemental declarations and attachments to its motion for
summary determination.

On March 31, 2010, the presiding administrative law judge issued the subject final 1D,
Order No. 34, granting Red Bull’s motion for summary determination of violation with respect
to respondents Avalon, Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Central Supply, and Chicago
Import. He also recommended a general exclusion order and a 100 percent bond to permit
importation during the Presidential review period.

No petitions for review were filed. The Commission has determined not to review Order
No. 34.

In connection with the final disposition of this investigation, the Commission may (1)
issue an order that could result in the exclusion of the subject articles from entry into the United



States, and/or (2) issue one or more cease and desist orders that could result in the respondent
being required to cease and desist from engaging in unfair acts in the importation and sale of
such articles. Accordingly, the Commission is interested in receiving written submissions that
address the form of remedy, if any, that should be ordered. If a party seeks exclusion of an article
from entry into the United States for purposes other than entry for consumption, the party should
so indicate and provide information establishing that activities involving other types of entry
either are adversely affecting it or likely to do so. For background, see In the Matter of Certain
Devices for Connecting Computers via Telephone Lines, Inv. No. 337-TA-360, USITC Pub. No.
2843 (December 1994) (Commission Opinion).

If the Commission contemplates some form of remedy, it must consider the effects of that
remedy upon the public interest. The factors the Commission will consider include the effect
that an exclusion order and/or cease and desist orders would have on (1) the public health and
welfare, (2) competitive conditions in the U.S. economy, (3) U.S. production of articles that are
like or directly competitive with those that are subject to investigation, and (4) U.S. consumers.
The Commission is therefore interested in receiving written submissions that address the
aforementioned public interest factors in the context of this investigation.

If the Commission orders some form of remedy, the U.S. Trade Representative, as
delegated by the President, has 60 days to approve or disapprove the Commission’s action. See
Presidential Memorandum of July 21, 2005. 70 Fed. Reg. 43251 (July 26, 2005). During this
period, the subject articles would be entitled to enter the United States under bond, in an amount
determined by the Commission and prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury. The
Commission is therefore interested in receiving submissions concerning the amount of the bond
that should be imposed if a remedy is ordered.

WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS: Parties to the investigation, interested government agencies, and
any other interested parties are encouraged to file written submissions on the issues of remedy,
the public interest, and bonding. Complainants and the Commission investigative attorney are
also requested to submit proposed remedial orders for the Commission’s consideration.
Complainants are also requested to state the HTSUS numbers under which the accused products
are imported.

Written submissions must be filed no later than close of business on May 28, 2010.
Reply submissions must be filed no later than the close of business on June 7, 2010. Such
submissions should address the ALJ’s recommended determinations on remedy and bonding
which were made in Order No. 34. No further submissions on any of these issues will be
permitted unless otherwise ordered by the Commission.

Persons filing written submissions must file the original document and 12 true copies
thereof on or before the deadlines stated above with the Office of the Secretary. Any person
desiring to submit a document to the Commission in confidence must request confidential
treatment unless the information has already been granted such treatment during the
investigation. All such requests should be directed to the Secretary to the Commission and must
include a full statement of the reasons why the Commission should grant such treatment. See 19



C.F.R. § 201.6. Documents for which confidential treatment by the Commission is sought will
be treated accordingly. All nonconfidential written submissions will be available for public
inspection at the Office of the Secretary.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337), and in sections 210.16 and 210.42-46 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. §§ 210.16; 210.42-46).

By order of the Commission.

Marilyn R. 4
Secretary to the¢ Commission

Issued: May 14, 2010
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PUBLIC VERSION

UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

In the Matter of

CERTAIN ENERGY DRINK PRODUCTS Investigation No. 337-TA-678

R R

Order No. 34: Initial Determination Finding Violation, Terminating The Investigation,
And Further Recommending The Entry Of A General Exclusion Order
And A 100% Bond

On December 2, 2009, pursuant to Commission rule 210.18, complainants Red Bull
GmbH and Red Bull North America, Inc. (Red Bull), relying on certain attached declarations,’ a
supporting memorandum and certain undisputed material facts (SUMF), moved for summary
determination on the issues of existence of a domestic industry, importation and violation of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (as amended) by respondents Avalon International General
Trading, LLC (Avalon), Posh Nosh Imports (USA), Inc. (Posh Nosh), Greenwich, Inc.

(Greenwich), Advantage Food Distributors (Advantage Food), Central Supply, Inc., Chicago

' The following declarations were included with Motion No. 678-25:

the Declaration of Andrea Ceraico (Ceraico Dec.); the Declaration
of Sélim Chidiac (Chidiac Dec.); the Declaration of Roland Concin
(Concin Dec.); the Declaration of Ilene Eskenazi (Eskenazi Dec.),
the Declaration of Sean Gallagher (Gallagher Dec.); the
Declaration of Volker Viechtbauer (Viechtbauer Dec.); the
Declaration of Ahmed Hamrah (Hamrah Dec.); the Declaration of
Ravi Bhatia (Bhatia Dec.); the Declaration of Joaquin Davila
(Davila Dec.); the Declaration of Hiren Shah (Shah Dec.); the
Declaration of William Cawthorne (Cawthorne Dec.); the
Declaration of James Sohn (Sohn Dec.); and the Declaration of
Anna Kurian Shaw (Shaw Dec.).



Import Inc. and Lamont Dist., Inc. (Lamont) (referred to by complainants as “Deféulting
Respondents™) and further requested that the administrative law judge recommend that the
Commission enter a general exclusion order, and that a bond equal in value to the value of the
accused products be required during the Presidential review period. (Motion Docket No. 678-
25).2

The staff, in a response dated December 23, 2009 (SR), argued that Motion No. 678-25
should be granted to the extent that a domestic industry exists, that Section 337 has been violated
by defaulting respondents Avalon, Posh Nosh, Greenwich, Advantage Food, Central Supply,
Inc., and Chicago Import Inc., and that the administrative law judge should recommend entry of a
general exclusion order and a 100% bond. (SR at 39). Regarding respondent Lamont it argued
that the offer for sale evidenced in Exhibit I to the Shaw Dec. was not completed and hence that
there is no substantial, reliable, and probative evidence that Lamont imported into the United

States the UK. product referenced in Exh. J to the Shaw Dec. (SR at 11.)

2 In a filing on December 11, 2009 by complainants’ counsel Anna Kurian Shaw and
addressed “To Whom It May Concern” it is represented:

On December 9, 2009 Complainants Red Bull GmbH and Red Bull North
America, Inc. (“Red Bull”) received a request from the Honorable Paul J. Luckern
that Red Bull serve on all Respondents in the above-referenced investigation and
file with the Commission public versions of the Motion for Summary
Determination and accompanying Statement of Fact which were filed on
December 2, 2009. Attached are public versions of these documents. In order to
obtain confidential copies of the attached documents as well as the accompanying
confidential declarations of Ravi Bhatia, William Cawthorne, Andrea Ceraico,
Selim Chidiac, Roland Concin, Joaquin Davila, Ilene Eskenazi, Sean Gallagher,
Ahmed Hamrah, Hiren Shah, Anna Kurian Shaw, James Sohn, and Volker
Viechtbauer, you must sign on to the Administrative Protective Order entered in
connection with Investigation No. 337-TA-678.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact us.

2



No other party responded to Motion No. 678-25.

On January 13, 2010, complainants filed a supplement to Motion No. 678-25. The
administrative law judge in his Order No. 31, which issued on January 13, 2010, treated said
supplement as Motion No. 678-33. No party responded to Motion No. 678-33.

On March 10, 2010, complainants filed a second supplement to Motion No. 678-25,
which included a supplemental declaration of Roland Concin (Concin Suppl. Decl.). The
administrative law judge in his Order No. 33, which issued on March 10, 2010, treated said
supplement as Motion No. 678-34. The staff, in response to Motion No. 678-34, did not object
to said second supplement which it argued is merely a statement of new facts and does not
“augment” any of complainants’ legal arguments.

Complainants, in support of Motion No. 678-25, argued that no disputed material facts
exist regarding (1) whether a domestic industry exists within the meaning of 19 C.F.R. §
1337(a)(1)(C) with respect to Red Bull Energy Drink and Red Bull Sugarfee products (U.S. Red
Bull Energy Drink) authorized for sale in the United States by complainant Red Bull GmbH
through its exclusive distributor complainant Red Bull North America, Inc. (RBNA), said
products featuring and protected by U.S. Reg. Nos. 3,092,197 for the RED BULL word mark,
2,946,045 for the Double Bull Design, 2,994,429 for the Red Bull Sugarfree Background Design
and 3,479,607 for the composite front panel design (Red Bull Registered Marks) and the Red
Bull Copyright Reg. No. VA0001410959 (Red Bull Copyright) covering the arrangement of
elements appearing on the front of the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink can; (2) whether Defaulting
Respondents have unlawfully sold for importation into the United States, imported into the

United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation the Gray Market



Unauthorized Red Bull Energy Drink; (3) whether Defaulting Respondents have infringed the
Red Bull Registered Marks and the Red Bull Copyright; and (4) whether circumvention of an
exclusion order limited to products of named entities is likely. It was further argued that there is
a pattern of violation of 19 U.S.C. § 1337, and that it is difficult to identify the source of
infringing products. Hence complainants argued that complainants Red Bull are entitled to
summary determination with respect to the Defaulting Respondents, as a matter of law, on the
issues of domestic industry, importation, and violation of Section 337 and that because of the
likelihood of circumvention, pattern of violation, difficulty in identifying the source, and the fact
that the public interest will not be harmed, complainants Red Bull are entitled to a general
exclusion order. (Motion No. 678-25, Memo at 6.)

Complainants, in further support, argued that the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink is, quite
simply, a run-away success with over{ } cans sold since the products were first introduced
in 1996 and 2003, respectively; that central to this success has been a carefully orchestrated
brand image, significant quality control and safety efforts, and the delivery of a uniform and high
quality product to consumers; that the singular success of the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink
pioneered the creation of the energy drink category in the United States, a category in which the
U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink remains the leader more than a decade later; that because of the
tremendous goodwill associated with the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink, complainants Red Bull
vigilantly monitor and control the marketing, advertising and promotion of the U.S. Red Bull
Energy Drink, and the quality and safety of the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink and as a result of
these and other efforts by complainants Red Bull, the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink is a

breakthrough success and ubiquitous throughout the United States; that because of the incredible



popularity of the U.S. Red Bull Energy Drink and the well-established consumer demand for the
products, the Defaulting Respondents and other unidentified importers and distributors have
opportunistically sold for importation into, imported into, and/or sold within the United States
certain Red Bull Energy Drink and Red Bull Sugarfree products which are authorized for sale in
various countries of the world other than the United States (e.g., Ireland, the U.K., Turkey,
Mexico, Singapore, and Pakistan (the Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drink); that Gray Market
Red Bull Energy Drink contains a number of material differences from U.S. Red Bull Energy
Drink, including, inter alia, omitting the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) required
nutrition facts panel on the back of the can, omitting volumetric information on the front of the
can, omitting requisite state deposit information, and identifying foreign distributors as contacts
for customer inquiries and complaints; that the Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drink, which is
manufactured in Europe and shipped to the United States for distribution, is not subject to Red
Bull's quality control and safety procedures and thus, the sales of Gray Market Red Bull Energy
Drink in the United States have damaged and threaten to continue to damage complainants Red
Bull’s valuable reputation and goodwill, and these sales also pose a risk to public safety because
they are not subject to Red Bull's quality and safety control, including, for example, product
recall and rotation procedures; that the sales of Gray Market Red Bull Energy Drink in the United
States are widespread and sporadic, with numerous unknown and ever-changing entities
invqlved; and that, during the course of this investigation, complainants Red Bull have learned of
hundreds of entities that are engaged in such activities. (Id. Memo at 3-4.)

With respect to the events relating to the filing of Motion No. 678-25, by notice, dated

June 12, 2009, the Commission instituted an investigation, pursuant to subsection (b) of section



337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, to determine (a) whether there is a violation of
subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for
importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain energy drink
products by reason of infringement of said Red Bull Copyright, and whether an industry in the
United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337; and (b) whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(c) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale
for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain energy drink
products by reason of infringement of said Red Bull Registered Marks and whether an industry in
the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

Complainants Red Bull had filed the complaint, which resulted in the notice of
investigation, on May 15, 2009, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended. The
complainants filed a letter supplementing the complaint on June 1, 2009. The following were
named in the notice of investigation® as respondents and were served with the complaint:

Chicago Import Inc.

3801-11 West Laurence Avenue

Chicago, IL 60625

Lamont Dist., Inc.,

a/k/a Lamont Distributors Inc.

5 Lamont Court Suite 3A

Brooklyn, NY 11225

India Imports, Inc.,

a/k/a International Wholesale Club

2901 Richland Avenue
Metairie, LA 70002

? The notice of investigation was published on June 17, 2009. (74 Reg. No. 115 at
28725.)



Washington Food and Supply of D.C., Inc.,

a/k/a Washington Cash & Carry

1270 4" Street NE

Washington, DC 20002

Vending Plus, Inc.

2409 Peppermill Drive, Unit J

Glen Burnie, MD 21061

Baltimore Beverage Co.

2409 Peppermill Drive., Unit J

Glen Burnie, MD 21061

Order No. 3, which issued on July 1, 2009, required a correct address for respondent
Lamont. Complainants, responding to Order No. 3 on July 8, 2009, represented that the correct
address is the same address identified in the complaint. Thus, Order No. 5, which issued on July
9, 2009, requested complainants to effect personal service of the complaint and notice of
investigation on Lamont.

Order No. 4, which issued on July 7, 2009; set a target date of September 17, 2010, which
meant that any final initial determination on violation should be filed no later than May 17, 2010.

Order No. 7, which issued on July 21, 2009, granted complainants’ Motion No. 678-3
which requested that the notice of investigation be amended to remove Vending Plus, Inc. and
Baltimore Beverage Co., as separate respondents, and to replace them with a single respondent
designated Vending Plus, Inc., d/b/a Baltimore Beverage Co (Vending). The Commission
determined not to review Order No. 7 on August 12, 2009.

Order No. 11, which issued on September 8, 2009 granted complainants’ Motion No.

678-9 to amend the complaint and notice of investigation to add six new respondents, viz. Posh

Nosh Imports (USA) (Posh Nosh), Greenwich, Inc. (Greenwich), Advantage Food Distributors,



Ltd. (Advantage), Wheeler Trading, Inc. (Wheeler), Avalon International General Trading, LLC
(Avalon), and Central Supply, Inc. The Commission determined not to review Order No. 11 on
October 2, 2009.

Order No. 21, which issued on December 9, 2009, found respondent Lamont in default.
Order No. 22, which also issued on December 9, 2009, found respondent Avalon in default. On
January 5, 2010, the Commission determinated not to review Order Nos. 21 and 22.

Order No. 24, which issued on December 22, 2009, terminated the investigation as to
respondent Wheeler based on a settlement agreement. Order No. 25, which issued on December
22,2009, tenﬁinated the investigation as to respondent Washington based on a settlement
agreement. Order No. 26, which issued on December 22, 2009,1terminated the investigation as to
respondent india Imports, Inc. based on a settlement agreement. Order No. 27, which issued on
December 22, 2009, terminated the investigation as to respondent Vending based on a settlement
agreement. The Coﬁmission determined not to review Order Nos. 24, 25, 26 and 27 on J énuary
20, 2010.

| Order Né. 28, which issued on December 29, 2009, granted éomplainants’ Motion No.
678-29 to the extent that the procedural schedule, which included evidentiary hearing dates of
February 16, 17, 18, and 19, 2010, was suspended.

Order No. 29, which issued on January 8, 2010, found each of respondents Posh Nosh,
Greenwich, and Advantage Food in default. Order No. BQ, which issued on January 11, 2010,
found respondent Chicago Import Inc. in default. On January 28, 2010, the Commission
determined not to review Order Nos. 29 and 30.

Order No. 32, which issued on January 19, 2009, found respondent Central Supply, Inc.



in default. On February 16, 2010, the Commission determined not to review Order No. 32.
Pursuant to Commission rule 210.18(b), summary determination “shall be rendered if
pleadings and any depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with
the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the
moving party is entitled to summary determination as a matter of law.” The evidence “must be
viewed in the light most favorable to the party opposing the motion . . . with doubts resolved in

favor of the nonmovant.” Crown Operations Int'l, Ltd. v. Solutia, Inc., 289 F.3d 1367, 1375 (Fed.

Cir. 2002) (internal citations omitted). “Issues of fact are genuine only if the evidence is such that
a reasonable [fact finder] could return a verdict for the nonmoving party.” Id. (quoting Anderson

v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 248 (1986)). In other words, the evidence is to be viewed in

a light most favorable to the nonmovant, and all reasonable inferences must be drawn in favor of

the nonmovant. Certain Condensers, Parts Thereof and Products Containing the Same, Including

Air Conditioners for Automobiles, Inv. No. 337-TA-334, Views of the Commission at 3 (Nov.

25, 1992). Also, in moving for summary determination, the moving party bears the burden of (a)
demonstrating the absence of any genuine issue of material fact, and (b) its entitlement to
judgment as a matter of law. Certain Cigarettes and Packaging thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-643
(Certain Cigarettes I), Comm’n Op. at 5 (Oct. 2009). Where, as here, no respondents contest the
motion for summary determination because the respondents have either been terminated based on
settlements or have not made an appearance and are defaulting, a determination of violation of
Section 337 must be supported by “reliable, probative, and substantial evidence.” See Certain Ink
Markers and Packaging Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-522, Order No. 30 at 13-14 (Jul. 25, 2005)

(Unreviewed Initial Determination); Certain Purple Protective Gloves, Inv. No. 337-TA-500,



Order No. 17 at 3-4 (Sept. 23, 2004) (Unreviewed Initial Determination); Certain Sildenafil or

any Pharmaceutically Acceptable Salt Thereof, Such as Sildenafil Citrate, and Products

Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-489, Comm’n. Op. Remedy, the Public Interest, and Bonding
at 4-5 (Jul. 2004).

Pursuant to the notice of investigation, in issué are Trademark Reg. No. 3,092,197 for the
RED BULL word mark, Trademark Reg. No. 2,946,045 for the Double Bull Design, Trademark
Reg. No. 2,994,429 for the Red Bull Sugarfree Background Design, and Trademark Reg. No.
3,479,607 for the composite front panel design. (Chidiac Dec. at 11, Exs. I-L..) Each registration
certificate indicates that complainants Red Bull are the owner of the marks. Id.

Under 15 U.S.C. §1057(b), a federal registration is prima facie evidence of the validity of
the registered mark, the registrant’s ownership of the mark, and the registrant’s exclusive right to
use the registered mark in commerce on or in connection with the goods or services specified in
the certificate, subject to any conditions or limitations stated in the certificate.

The administrative law judge finds nothing in the record that calls into question the
validity of the Red Bull Registered Marks at